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Independent Auditor's Report

To The Members of Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited ("the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,2022, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive lncome), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the
financial statements").

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the lndian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndian Accounting
Standards) Rules,2015, as amended, ("lnd AS") and accounting principles generally accepted in
lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2022, the loss (financial performance
including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia (lCAl) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requtrements and the lCAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

lnformation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Board's Report including Annexures to
Board's Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsisteirt with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash.
flows of the Company in accordance with the lnd AS and other accounting principles gener3tly
accepted in lndia. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting recor$$ in
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accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and .. ,,

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of lndia in terms of sub-section (1 1) of section 143 o1 the Act, we give in "Annexure
A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 1a3(3)of theAct, based on ourauditwe reportthat:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive lncome),
Statement of Change in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the lnd AS specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure 8".

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any longterm contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.
The Management has represented that to the best of its knowledge & belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced, loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the lntermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identifled in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;.

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge & belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in

the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that tle::::,-
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11('e), as provided under (a) ,{1bS', :,1,.i,
above, contain any material misstatement. 
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v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

3) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' report under Section 197(16):

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not paid or provided
any managerial remuneration to its director during the year.

For S.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP
Chaftered Accountants,
Firm's Registration Number 001478N/N500005
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(Sandeep Dinodla)
Partner

Membership Number 083689
UDIN : 22083689AJCHSP7814

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: 17.05.2022
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Annexure 'A' to the lndependent Auditors' Report of even date on the financial
statements of Sterlinq Gtake E-Mobilitv Limited

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of lndependent Auditors' Report to the members of the Company on the financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2022, we report that:

i)

a) (A) Proper records showing full particulars and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment are
maintained.
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of lntangible assets.

b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the Management at
reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) On the basis of information and explanation provided by the Management, no immovable properties
are held by the Company and hence 3(i)(c) of the Companies (Audito/s Report) Order, 2020 is not
applicable to the Company.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, the
Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated or
are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(iXe) of the Order are not applicable.

ii)
a) On the basis of information and explanation provided by the Management, the Management has

conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year, except for
goods-in{ransit. ln our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification is appropriate
having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its business. According to the information
and explanations given to us, no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventory between physical inventory and book records were noticed on physical verification.

b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limit in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from bank on the basis of primary security of current assets. According to the
information and explanations given to us, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with bank are materially in agreement with the books of account of the Company. The
Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits by any financial institutions.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither made any
investments nor provided any guarantee or security nor granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or
any other parties. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(iii) (a) to (f) of the Order are not
applicable.

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any transaction covered under Sections 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable.

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the year and had no
unclaimed deposits at the beginning of the year within the meaning of Sections 73 lo 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

On the basis of available information and explanation provided to us, the Central Government has
not prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)of section 148 of the Companies
Act,2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment Rules,2014 dated
December 31,2014 (as amended from time to time) to the current operations carried out by the
Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) Order are not applicable.

iii)

iv)

v)

vi)
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vii) ln respect to statutory dues:
a) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and

Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, lncome Tax, duty of customs and any
other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. Further there were
no undisputed outstanding statutory dues as on the last day of the financial year concerned for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
given to us, there were no dues in respect of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that
have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, there
are no unrecorded transactions that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable.

ix)
a) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to
any lender during the year.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

c) The Company has not taken any term loans during the year covered by our audit or during earlier
years Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ixXc) of the Order are not applicable.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no
funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(ixXe) & 3(ix)(f) of the Order are not applicable.

x)
a) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not

raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during
the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xXa) of the Order are not applicable.

b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible). Accordingly, provisions of
clause 3 (xXb) of the Order are not applicable.

xi)
a) As per the information and explanations given to us on our enquiries on this behalf, no fraud of

material significance on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.
b) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-

section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed during the year and upto the date
of this report in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 wilh the Central Government.

c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii)(a) to (c) of the Order
are not applicable.

xiii) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of Act, where applicable, and the
requisite details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

xiv) The Company is not required to have an internal audit system u/s 138 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly the provisions of the clause (xiv) (a) & (b) of the order are not applicable to the
Company.
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xv) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with them covered
under Section 192 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not
applicable.

xvi)
a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of lndia

Act, 1934 (2of 1934). Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of the Orderare not
applicable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no core investment company
(ClC) within the Group (as defined in the Core lnvestment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016). Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xvi) (d) of the Order are not applicable.

xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has incurred cash losses
of T 407.41 Lakh in current financial year and { 279.65 Lakh in the immediately preceding financial
year.

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xviii) of the Order are not applicable.

xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

xx) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, as per provisions of
section 135 of the Companies Act,2013, the Company does not require to spend on corporate
social responsibility. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xx) (a) & (b) of the Order are not
applicable.

xxi) The reporting under clause 3 (xxi) of the order is not applicable in respect of financial statements of
the Company. Accordingly, no comment in respect of said clause has been included in the report.

For S.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP
Ch arte red Accou ntants,
Firm's Registration Number 001478N/N500005
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(Sandeep'Dinodia)

Paftner "1 . -" ....!'

Membership Number 083689
UDIN : 22083689AJCHSP781 4

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: 17.05.2022



Annexure 'B' to the lndependent Auditor's Report of even date on the financial statements of
Sterlinq Gtake E-Mobility Limited

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls under GIause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Sterlinq
Gtake E-Mobilitv Limited ("the Company") as of March 31,2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Interna! Financial Gontrols

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal controlwith reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of lndia (lCAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Aud itors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by lCAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of lnternal Financial Controls and, both issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of
lndia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have. a
material effect on the financial statements _:,y'", i



Inherent Limitations of !nternal Financia! Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

ln our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on "the internal control
with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia.

For S.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP
Chariered Accou ntants,
Firm's Registration Number 001478N/N500005
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(Sandeep dinodia)
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.,/Paftner
Membership Number 083689
UDIN : 22083689AJCHSP781 4

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: 17.05.2022



Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Batance Sheet As At Mar 31 ,2022
(All amounts t in lakh, except otherwise specified)

Particulars Notes As At As At
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
(b) Capital work-in-progress
(c) Other lntangible Assets
(d) Financial Assets

(i) Other Financial Assets
(e) Deferred Tax Assets (net)

(f) Non-Current Tax Assets (Net)
(g) Other Non-Current Assets
Total Non-Current Assets

Current Assets
(a) lnventories
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Trade Receivables
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents
(iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above
(iv) Other Financial Assets

(c) Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital

(b) Other Equity

Total Equity

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Other Financial Liabilities

(b) Provisions

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(ii) Trade Payables

(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and

(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities

(b) Other current Liabilities

(c) Provisions

Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Total Equity And Liabilities

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

J
3A
4

432.74

4.85

2.54
131.30

4.19
35.63

194.36
34.67

5.42

2.54
57.84

0.43
7.40

5

6

7
a

q

10

11

12

o

611.25 302.66

1,374.95

578.12
2.02

200.00

5.55

424.77

28.17

7.50
316.47

0.42

67.99

2,585.41 420.55

13

14

18

15

16

17

18

19
.A

845.60

(642.18)

845.60

(278.83)

566.77

79.40 4.59

79.40 4.59

2,189.60

0.96

587.20

52 03

46.42

37.63

001

62.02

81.35

841
0.06

2,913.84 151.85

2,993.24 156.M

3,196.66 723.21

)1

The accompanying notes are integral parl of the financials sfaaements

As per our Audit Report of even date attached

For S.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP,
Chaftered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number. 001 478N/N500005

,,",-rl"hr/-'l'1ff1.;\
Partner

Membership Number 083689

Place of Signature: New Delhi

Dater 
ri 'i;r

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited

,&",1 NT*' -.,,(

(Anish Agarwal)
Director

DIN No 07056465

\\1
l\-'''
1

(Jaideeil Wadhwa)
Director

DIN No 00410019

3 {q6 66 7ra 2,1



Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Statement Of Profit & Loss For The Year Ended Mar 31,2022
(l\ll amounts ( in lakh, except otherwise specified)

Particulars Notes
For the Year ended

March,2022
For the Year ended

March 31,2021

l. Revenue From Operations
ll. Other lncome

1;1. Total lncome (l + ll)

gy. Expenses
(a) Cost of Materials Purchased

(b) Change in Inventory of finished goods

(c) Employee Benefits Expense
(d) Finance Cost
(e) Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
(f) Other Expenses
Total Expenses

V. ProfiU (Loss) Before Exceptional ltems and Tax (lll-lV)
Vl. Exceptional ltems
Vll. ProfiU (Loss) Before Tax (V-Vl)
Vlll Tax Expense:

Current Tax
Deferred Tax Charge/ (lncome)

Total Tax Expense

Profit/(Loss) For The Year (Vll-Vlll)

Other Comprehensive lncome
(i) ltems that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit
(a) Re-measurement garns/ (losses) on defined benefit plans
(ii) Income tax relating to ltems that will not be reclassified
Statement of Profit or Loss
(i) ltems that will be reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss

(il) lncome tax relating to ltems that will be reclassified to
Statement of Profit or Loss

Total Other Comprehensive lncome, Net of Tax

Total Comprehensive lncome For The Year (X+Xl)

Earnings Per Equity Share: (Face Value ('10 Per Share)
1) Basic (amount in t)
2) Diluted (amount in t)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

20

21

22

24

25

26

27

3,834.07
7.53

19 06
E EA

3,841.61 24.59

4,116.20
(6ee.37)

295.85
79.21

32.78
455.97

41.25

(23.38)

182.82

604
'103 48

4,280.64 310.21

(43e.03) (285.62l.

(43e.03) (285.62)

29

(73.84) (56.84)

(73.84l- (56.84)

tx.

x.
(A)

(365.1e) (228.78)

to
2.23

(0.38)

(B)

1.84

XI

xil

(363.34) (228.78)

33

2.5

(4.32)
(4.32)

(5.38)

(5.38)

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financials statements

As per our Audit Report of even date attached

For S.R. Dinodia & Go. LLP,

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number: 001478N/N500005

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited

f,
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J

(Anish Agarwal)
Director

DIN No 07056465

\
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l

(Jaideep Wadhwa)
Director

DIN No 00410019

t $**r*
(Sandeep Dinodia)

Paftner

Membership Number 083689

Place of Signature: New Delhi

Date: ..-!
t ll



Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Statement of Cash Flows For The Year Ended March 31,2022
(All amounts { in lakh, except otherwise specified)

Particulars For the Year Ended
March 31,2022

For the Year Ended
March 31,2021

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net Profit Before Tax
Adjustments for :

Depreciation & Amortization (Net)

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets
Unrealised foreign exchange gain (net)

lnterest Expense & Finance Costs
lnterest lncome

Operation Profit Before Working Capital Ghanges
Ad1ustment For :

(lncrease)/ Decrease in Financial Assets
(lncrease)/ Decrease in inventories
(lncrease)/ Decrease in Other Assets
lncrease / (Decrease) in Financial Liabilities
lncrease / (Decrease) in Other Liabilities
lncrease / (Decrease) in Provisions
Net Cash Generated From Operations

Direct Taxes Paid(Net of Refund Received)
Net Cash From Operating Activities

B. Cash Flow From lnvesting Activities

Purchase of PPE & lntengible Assets
lnterest Received
Fixed deposits (other than cash equvalents)
Net cash Used ln lnvesting Activities

C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities

lssue of Equity Share Capital
Finance costs
Net Cash Used ln Financing Activities

Net lncrease in Cash & Gash Equivalent (A+B+C)

Cash And Cash Equivalents At The Beginning Of The Year

Cash And Gash Equivalents At The End Of The Year

Cash and cash equivalents include
Cash in hand

Balances With Scheduled Banks :

- Current Accounts
- Deposits with original maturity of three months or less

Note:-
All figures in brackets represent outflows.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(439.03)

32.78
1.92

(1 .1 6)

79.21
(6.80)

(333.0e)

(575.75)
(1,346.78)

(385.02)

2,637.51
38.02

114.60

(285.62)

6.04

(0.07)

ts.szl
(285.171

(e.57)
(28.17)
(67.25)
118.22

6.32
4.66

149.49

(3.76)

( A ) 14s.73

(237.83)
6.80

(200.00)
( B ) (431,03)

tzg. r ot
( c ) (2e.16)

(314.45)

316.47

2.02

2.02

0.00

2.02

(260.e6)

(0.43)
(261.39)

(237.65)
5,50

(232.15)

540.60

540.60

47.05
269 4

316.47

2.04

39.43
275.00
316.47

Note 2.3
The accompanying notes are an integral paft of the financials statements
As per our Audit Repo( of even date attached

For S.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 001478N/N500005

,,*,Hr-
Pafiner

Membership Number 083689

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: 

I :., ii

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited

(

r'\i^-,{. itnt..., -.,-l(j
(Anish Agarwal)

Director
DIN No 07056465

l'-------- -

(Jaideep Wadhwa)
Director

DIN No 00410019".*



Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity For The Year Ended March 31,2022
(All amounts ( in lakh, except otherwise specified)

(A) Equity share capital

Balance As At April 1,2020

lssued during the Year

Balance As At Mar 31,2021
lssued during the year

Balance As At Mar 3'1,2022

(B) Other Equity

Balance As At April 1,2020
Profit/ (Loss) For The Year

Balance As At Mar 31,2021

ProfiU (Loss) For The Year

Other Comprehensive lncome/ (Loss) For The Year *

Balance As At March 3'|.,2022

* Represents Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (net)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Note 2.3

No. of Shares
in Lakh

Amount

30.s0

54.06

305.00

540.60

84.s6 845.60

84.56 845.60

Reserves and
surplus

Other Equity

Retained earnings Total

(50.06)

(228.78)

(so.o6)

(228.78)

(278.83)

(365.1e)

1.84

(278.831

(365.19)

1.84

(642.18) (642.18)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financials statements

As per our Audit Report of even date attached

For S.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number: 001478N/N500005

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
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i
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1

(Anish Agarwal)
Director

DIN No 07056465

\\'-.f -

(Jaideep Wadhwa)
Director

DIN No 00410019

(Sandeep Dinodia)
Partner

Membership Number 083689

Place of Signature: New Delhi

Date: i ,ii '



Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Notes To Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31,2022

Note 1 : Corporatelnformation

Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited is a Public Limited Company (herein referred to as 'the Company') which is formed on January 1Q,2020 and
is domiciled in lndia. The Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, National Capital Territory, Delhi & Haryana in lndia and has

its registered office at Unit No. 515, DLF TowerA, Jasola District Centre, New Delhi - 110025. The Company is dealing in the sale of motor
control unit (MCU) used in automoblle industry.

Note2.1 : Statement of Compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with lndian Accounting Stndards (referred to as "lnd AS") as prescribed under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 171h,2022.

Note 2.2 : Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with lnd AS as notified under the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 read with section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant presentation requirements of the Companies Act 2013. The
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value as required under relevant lnd AS.
The financial statements are presented in lndian Rupees (, which is also company's functional currency and all values are rounded to the
nearest lakh (upto two decimals) except otherwise stated.
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an
existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Going Goncern
The board of directors have considered the financial position of the Company at March 31 , 2022 and the projected cash flows and financial
performance of the Company for at least twelve months from the date of approval of these financial statements with respect to planned cost
and cash improvement actions remains on course. Also, the board of directors have taken actions to ensure that appropriate long-term cash
resources are in place at the date of signing the accounts to fund the Company's operations. ln view of above, financial statements have been
prepared on going concern assumption basis.

Note 2.3 : Significant accounting policies

a) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised
prospectively in current and future periods.

Judgements:
ln the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue
The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria, i.e. whether it has exposure to the significant risks and rewards
associated with the sale of goods or the rendering of services, in order to determine if it is acting as a principal or as an agent. The Company
has concluded that they operating on a principal to principal basis in all its revenue arrangements.
When deciding the most appropriate basis for presenting revenue or costs of revenue, both the legal form and substance of the agreement
between the Company and its business partners are reviewed to determine each party's respective role in the transaction.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in

change in depreciation expense in future periods.

Estimates and Assumptions:
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, ate described below. The
Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances
and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the
control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

lncome taxes
The Company is subject to income tax laws as applicable in lndia. Significant judgment is required in determining provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where thqirTaltax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax anddeferred_tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made. ,, 

/.---
Recoverability of deferred taxes
ln assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is probable that taxable profit will be ava\lableagainst
which the losses can be utilised. The ultimate realisation of defened tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxabte:h6orfie
during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the projected future taxable income and tax
planning strategies in making this assessment.



Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Notes To Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31,2022

b) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on currenV non-current classification.
Assets:
An asset is treated as current when it is:
a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed rn normal operating cycle.
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading
c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities:
A liability is current when:
(a) lt is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
(b) lt is held primarily for the purpose of trading
(c) lt is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
(d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle: The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

c) Revenue

Revenue from contract with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring distinct goods or services to a customer as
specified in the contract, excluding the amount collected on behalf of third parties (for example, taxes and duties collected on behalf of
government). The Company has concluded that it is principal in its revenue arrangements.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the
transaction price needs to be allocated e.g. warranties. ln determining the transaction price for the sale of products, the Company considers the
effect of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing component, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the
customer (if any).

lf the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Some contracts for the sale of products provide the customers with volume rebates that give
rise to variable consideration.

Generally, the Company does not receive short term or long term advances from its customers except in certain scenarios. Using the practical
expedient in lnd AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing
component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of promised good or service to the customer and when the
customer pays for good or service will be one year or less. The company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the
transfer of promised goods and services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year except where the payment terms
might provide the entity or the customer with protection from the other party failing to adequately complete some or all of its obligations under
the contract. As a consequence, it does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

Other lncome
lnterest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate applicable and where no significant
unceftainty as to measurability or collectability exists..

d) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property Plant and Equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of Property, Plant and
Equipment includes non-refundable taxes, duties, freight, Insurance, labour cost, allocable borrowing costs and other directly attributable cost
to the construction / acquisition of the assets.Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised only if such
expenditure results in an increase in the future benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

Gain or loss arising on account of sale of Property, Plant and Equipment are measured as the difference between the net proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the asset is sold.

The Schedule ll to the Companies Act, 2013 requires that useful life and depreciation for significant components of an asset should be
determined seperately. identification of significant components is matter of judgement and decided on case to case basis on the facts and
circumstances of each cases. The company capitalise these cost as a separate component of the asset with consequent expensing of net
carrying value of replaced part.

Depreciation on Property Plant and Equipment is provided on straight-line method over the useful lives of assets specified in Schedule ll to the
Companies Act,2013. Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during a period is proportlonately charged to Statement of Profit & Loss.
Leasehold improvements are amortised over the lease term or the useful life of the assets.

Subsequent costs: The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of
property, plant and equipment, if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost
can be measured reliably with the carrying amount of the replaced part getting derecognised. The cost for day-to-day servicin( of prbph(y,

{.//
plant and equipment are recognised in statement of profit and loss as and when incurred

li --:'::-:::-:
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Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Notes To Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31,2022

Derecognition : Property, plant and equipment is derecognised when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or upon their
disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal
with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

e) lntangible Assets
lntangible Assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes any directly
attributable incidental expenses necessary to make the assets ready for its intended use.

Software which are not an integral part of related hardware, is treated as intangible asset and amortized over a period of three years or its
licensed period, whichever is less.

Capital Work in Progress
Capital work in progress comprises the cost of property, plant and equipment that are not ready for their intended use at the reporting
date.Expenditure incurred during the period of construction, including all direct and indirect expenses, incidental and related to construction, is
carried forward and on completion, the costs are allocated to the respective property, plant and equipment. Capital work-in-progress also
includes assets pending installation and not available for intended use.

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs conststs of interest and amortization of ancillary costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they occur. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

h) lnventories
lnventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost lncludes purchase price, freight inwards, custom duty and other
expenditure Incurred in bringing such inventories to their present location and condition but does not includes those expenditure which are
subsequently recoverable by the enterprise from concerned revenue authorities. The cost of various components of inventory is determined as
fnllarrrc.-

Raw Materials First in first out method

Stores, Spares and Packing Material Weighted average method

Finished goods and work-in-progress Raw material cost on first in first out method and includes
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present value and locations

Employee's Benefits
Expenses and Liabilities in respect of employee benefits are recorded in accordance with lndian Accounting Standard 19 - Employees
Benefits issued by the Company (lndian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015.

Short Term Employee Benefits: All employees' benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the services are classified as
short term employee benefits. The benefits like salaries, wages, short term compensated absences etc. and the expected cost of bonus are
recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related services at undiscounted amount.

Defined Contribution Plan
For Defined Contribution Retirements Benefit Schemes, payments are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Defined Benefit Plan
The cost of providing defined benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each
balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period in which they occur. Past
service cost is recognized immediately to the extent the benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortized on a straight line basis over
the average period until the benefits become vested. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present
value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past service cost and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any
asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future
contributions to the scheme.

Post Employment Benefit Plans
For Defined Benefit Schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method with actuarial valuations
being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period in
which they occur. Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise is amortized on
a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for
unrecognized past service cost and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past
servicecost,plusthepresentvalueof availablerefundsandreductionsinfuturecontributionstothescheme 

.,.ri.i.:::.":::..

j) Foreign Currency Transactions ka
lnitial Recognition: The transactions in foreign currency are initially accounted for at the rate prevailing as on the transaction date. (

Conversion: Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are reported using the closing exchange rate on each Balance Sheet Date, NorF,,
Monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date
of transaction.

Exchange Difference: The Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items or reporting these items at rates different from
rates at which these were initially recorded/ reported in previous financial statements are recognized as income/expense in the period in which
they arise.



Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Notes To Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31,2022

k) Taxes on lncome : Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current Tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable
or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. lt is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is
intended to realise the asset and settle the Iiability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses
and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future profits will be available against which they can be used. The
existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of history of recent losses,
the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other
evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.

Deferred tax assets - unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced to the extent that it is
probable / no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefits will be realized.

Defened tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on
the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
The measurement of defened tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Defened tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and
they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authorities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is
intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Minimum Alternate Tax

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in the year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax. The Company recognises MAT
credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. ln the year in which Company recognises MAT credit as
an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternate Tax under the lncome Tax
Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as "MAT Credit Entitlement ". The
Company reviews the "MAT Credit Entitlement" asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not
have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.
ln accordance with lnd AS 12 Company is grouping MAT credit entitlement with Deferred Tax Assets / Liability (Net).

l) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset for one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument for another

Financial Assets

lnitial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs thai are attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
-Debt instruments at amortised cost
-Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
-Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit and loss (FWPL)
-Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
The category applies to the Company's trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, security deposits and other loans and
advances, etc.
A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
(i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and
(ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (ElR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
ElR. The accretlon of EIR is recorded as an income or expense in statement of profit and loss. The losses arising fr,ofn impairment are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. i' , ,-"\.r./ ,ti
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Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Notes To Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31,2022

Equity instruments
All equity investments in the scope of lnd AS 109 are measured at fair value.
For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subseguent
changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument by- instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable. lf the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FWOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCl. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even
on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Equity instruments included within the
FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition
A ftnancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's Balance Sheet)
when:
(i) The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or
(ii) The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass{hrough' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Financial Liabilities
lnitial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.
The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, security deposits received etc.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
-Financial liabilities at amortised cost
-Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss (FWPL)

Financial liabilities at Amortized cost
Loans and borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective lnterest Rate (ElR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
ElR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to the borrowings.

De-recognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(m) Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a llability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:
(a) ln the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(b) ln the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant.to ihe-Iair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

n) lmpairment !' 
y'

lmpairment of Financial Assets , t,/'

ln accordance with lnd AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of irpiirra;i"il.. on
the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:
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(a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.9., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and

bank balance.
(b) Trade receivables;using the lifetime expected credit loss model.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a

significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. lf credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased signiflcantly, lifetime ECL is used. lf, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the

rnstrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to

recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at

fair value through profit or loss, borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as

appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable

transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, borrowings and derivative financial instruments.

lmpairment of Non Financial Assets
The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment considering the provisions of lnd AS 36 'lmpairment of Assets'. lf any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount
is estimated.

For imparrment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each

CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of the other assets or

CGUs.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. ln
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot
be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the "cash-generating unit", or "CGU").

The Company's corporate assets (eg. Central office building for providing support to various CGUs) do not generate independent cash inflows.
To determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate assets belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are

recognised in the statement of profit or loss. lmpairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of any other assets of the CGUs (or group of CGUs
on a pro-rata basis.

o) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognized in the accounts in respect of present probable obligations arising as a result of past events and it is probable that

there will be an outflow of resources, the amount of which can be reliably estimated.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their existence is confirmed by the

occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

p) Earning per share

ln determining earnings per share, the company considers the net profit after tax and includes the post tax effect of any extra ordinary items.

- Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

- For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earning per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the

weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

q) Leases
Accounting-Asalessee
The company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings.The Company assesses whether a contract contains a
lease,at inception of a contract.A contract is,or contains,a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.To assess whether acontract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset,the

Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic

benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease,the Company recognizes a righlof-use asset("ROU") and a corresponding lease liability for all lease

arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short{ermleases) and low value leases.For these

short{erm and low value leases,the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of

the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term.ROU assets and lease

liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost,which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments

made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease/erirt ,nO'rsqii| lif. ot

the underlying asset.Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstarlfes' indicate 
|.bat 

tnei,

carrying amounts may not be recoverable \t 
, L,, 

' 
,..,!

measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments.The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the leaseor,if not readily determinable,using the incremental borrowing rates.Lease liabilities are remeasured
with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an

extension or a termination option.

r) Operating Segment
ln accordance with lnd AS 108, the operating segments used to present segment information are identified on the basis of internal reports used
by the Company's Management to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance. The Board of Directors is collectively the
Company's'Chief
Operating Decision Maker'or'CODM'within the meaning of lnd AS 108. The indicators used for internal reporting purposes may evolve in

connection with performance assessment measures put in place.

s) Cash Flow Statement
The cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted forthe effects of transactions of a non-cash nature,
any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated as specified in lndian
Accounting Standard 7 - Cash Flow Statement.

t) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash balance on hand, cash balance at banks and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash
management.

[This space has been left blank intentionally]
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(Al! amounts ( in lakh, except otherwise specified)

Note 4 : Other lntangible Assets

Particulars Software Tot

Gross Carrying Amount

As At April 1,2020
Additions made during the Year
Less: Disposals/adjustments during the Year
As At March 31,2021

Additions made during the Year
Less: Disposals/adjustments during the Year
As At Mar 31,2022

l\mortisation and impairment
As At April 1,2020

Depreciation charge for the Year
Less: Disposals/adjustments during the Year
As At March 31,2021

Depreciation charge for the Year
Less: Disposals/adjustments during the Year

As At Mar 31,2022

Net Carrying Amount as at 31 March 2021
Net Garrying Amount as at 31 Mar 2022

7.24

0.01

0.17

0.18

2.22

2.40

5.42
4.85

[This space has been left blank intentionally]

0.52

5.08

5.60
1.65
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(All amounts ( in lakh, except otherwise specified)

Note 5 : Other Financial Asset

(Unsecured and considered good)

Security Deposits

lnterest Accrued but not due on FDR

Note 6 : Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Gross Deferred Tax Assets

Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities

Total deferred tax assets (Net)

Deferred tax assets relates to the following:
Carried forward Preliminary Expenses

Provision for Employee Benefits

Unabsorbed Loss & Depreciation

Provision for Warranty

Other items

Deferred tax liability relates to the following:
Property, plant and equipment

Total deferred tax assets/(liabiities) (Net)

Deferred tax assets relates to the following:
Carried forward Preliminary Expenses

Provision for Employee Benefits

Unabsorbed Loss & Depreciation

Other items

Deferred tax liability relates to the following:
Property, plant and equipment

Total deferred tax assets/(liabiities) (Net)

Note 7 : Non-Current Tax Assets (net)

Direct Tax (Net of Provision { Nil)

As At
Mar 31, 2022

Non-Gurrent Current

As At
March 31,2021

Non-Current Current

2.54 0.40

5.15

254
0.42

2.54 5.s5 2.54 0.42

As At
Mar 31,2022

137.77

(6.47)

131.30

As At
March 31, 2021

60.20

(2.36)
57.84

As At Recognised in Recognised in As At
March 31, 2021 Statement of Profit Statement of March 31, 2022

and Loss Other
Comprehensive

1.06

1.57

57.53

0.03

0.35

0.44
(59.44)

(1e.34)

0.03

0.38

0.71

0.76

1 16.97

19.34

(77.s6) 0.38 137.77

2.36 (4.11) 6.47

2.36 (4.11) 6.47

57.84 (73.84) 131.30

As At Recognised in Recognised in As At
April 01, 2020 Statement of Profit Statement of March 31, 2021

and Loss Other
Comprehensive

0.38

1.06

0.00

(0.00)

(1.57)

(57.53)

(0.03)

1.06

1.57

57.53

0.03

1.06 (5e.14)

0.059 (2.30) 2.36

(2.30) 2.36

1.00 (56.84) 57.84

As At
Mar 31,2022

As At
March 31,2021

0.434.19

4.19 0.43

60.20



Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts ( in lakh, except otherwise specified)

Note 8: OtherAssets

Capital Advances

Advance to Suppliers

Advance to employees

Prepaid Expenses

Balance with Revenue Authorities

Other Recoverable

As At
Mar 31,2022

Non-Current Current

As At
March 31,2021 i

Non-Current Current

35.15

0.48

66.22

0.37
'13.46

168.11

176.61

b.bJ

0.77

0.41

3.90

62.68

1.00

35.63

Note 9 : lnventories

(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Raw Malerial

Goods in Transit- Raw Material

Finished Goods

Goods in Transit- Finished Goods

Stores,Spares and Consumables

Packing Material

Note 10 : Trade Receivable

Trade Receivables Considered Good- Unsecured

Trade Receivables Considered Good- Secured

The company has no trade receivables having significant increase in credit risk, or which are credit impaired

a) Trade receivables ageing schedule as at March 31,2022:

424.77 7.40 67.99

As At
Mar 31,2022

As At
March 31,202'l

4.79

23.38

28.17

As At
March 31,2021

7.50

7.50

372.68

272.58

109.25

613.51

4.64

2.30

1,374.95

As At
Mar 31,2022

578.12

578.12

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

) Undisputed Trade Receivables -

) Undisputed Trade Receivables -

v) Disputed Trade Receivables -

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables -

Disputed Trade Receivables-

b) Trade receivables ageing schedule as at March 31,2021

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 6 months -1 1-2yearc 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables
considered qood

7.50 7.50

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant increase in

credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-
considered good ,/'::::' a:\
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant increase in

credit risk
l1

-.lrx
,// , .\\i"li

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired :a-

- :.,,,./
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(All amounts { in lakh, except otherwise specified)

Note 'tl : Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances With Scheduled Banks :

- Current Accounts "
- Deposits with original maturity of three months or less

Cash on hand

* Amounts lesser than { five hundred appear as zero due to round-off criteria.

Note 12 : Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalent

Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but not more than '12 months

[This space has been left blank intentionally]

As At
Mar 31,2022

As At
March 31,2021

39.43

275.00

2.04

000

2.02

2.02 316.47

200.00
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(All amounts ( in lakh, except otherwise specified)

Note 13 : Share Capital

Authorised:

150 Lakh equity shares of (101 each
( March 31 2021. 101 Lakh equity shares of {1 0^ each )

r
lssued, Subscribed & Paid Up:

84.56 Lacs equity shares of t10/- each

( March 31 2021:84.56 Lakh equity shares of t10/. each )

a) Reconciliation of Authorised, lssued and Subscribed Share Capital:

l. Reconciliation Of Authorised Share Capital :

Outstanding at the Beginning Of The Year

lncrease/(decrease) during the year

Outstanding at the End OfThe Year

ll. Reconciliation of lssued and Subscribed Share Capital:

Outstanding at the Beginning Of The Year

Add: lncrease/(Decrease) During The Year

Outstanding at the End Of The Year

b) Terms/rights Attached to Equity Shares

Sterling Tools Limited -

d) Shares held by holding company

Sterling Tools Limited -

8,456,000 (March 31,2021: 8,446,000) Equity Shares of { 10 each

% holding

84.56 100.00% 84.46 99 880/o

As at March 31,2022 As at March 31,2021

No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares % holding
(in Lakhs) (in Lakhs)

84.56 100.00% 84.46 99.88%

As At
Mar 31, 2022

1,500.00

845.60

845.60

As At
Mar 31,2021

1 ,010 00

845.60

845.60

March3l ,2022 March 31 ,2021
No. of Shares

ln Lakh
Amount No. of Shares Amount

ln Lakh

101.00

49.00

1 ,010.00

490.00

1 01 .00 1 ,0'10.00

150.00 1,500.00 101 .00 1,010.00

March 31 ,2022 March 31 ,2021
No. of Shares

ln Lakh
Amount No. ofShares Amount

ln Lakh
84.56 845.60 30.50

54 06

305.00

540.60

84.56 845.60 84.56 845.60

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of { 10 per share. Each holder of Equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. ln the
event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. No dividend is proposed by Board of
Directors of the Company.

c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

As at March 31,2022 As at March 31, 202'l

No. of Shares % holding
(in Lakhs)

No. of Shares
(in Lakhs)

e) Shareholding of Promoters

Shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2022 Shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2021

Promoter name No. of Shares
in Lakh

Toof total shares % Change
during the

vear

No. of Shares in Lakh %of total shares
% Change

during the year

Sterlinq Tools Limited - 84.56 100.00% 0.12% 84.46 99.88% 181.53%

* lncludes 6 shares (March 31 ,2021 . 4 Shares) held by nominee share holders

Note 14 : Other Equity

Retained Earnings

Total

a) For Movement during the period in Other Equity, refer "Statement of Change in Equity".

b) Nature and Purpose of Other Equity

As At
Mar 31,2022

(642" 1 8)

(642.1 8)

(i) Retained Earnings .-,':.1' :-.-:l'.'

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserye, dividends or other distributions
paid to shareholders. All the profits made by the Company are transferred to retained earnings from statement of profit and loss.

As At
Mar 31,2021



Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended Mar 31 ,2022
(All amounts ( in lakh, except otherwise specified)

As at Mar 31,2022 As at March 31,2021

Note 15 : Provisions

Provisions For Employee Benefits
Compensated Absences

Gratuity (Refer Note No. 28)

Other Provisions
Provision for warranty

i) Movement of provision for warranty :

Non-current Current Non-current Current

1.81

2.48

75.12

0.06

0.00

37.56

2.00

2.60

0.06

79.40 37.63

Opening Balance as
on

April'1,2021

Actual utilisation/
Replacement during the

year

Reversal during the
year

Provision created during
the year

Closing Balance as on
March 31,2022

112.68 112.68

ii) Contingent Liabilities and commitments:
Capital Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and which have not been provided for in the
financial statements, amounts to { 39.92 Lakh (March 31 ,2021: { 9.01 Lakh). The Company does not have any other long term
commitments or material non-cancellable Contractual Commitments, which may have a material impact on the financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities : No contingent liabilities have been identified by the management as on March 31 ,2022.

Note 16 : Gurrent Liabilities - Borrowings

Secured borrowings
Cash Credit Facilities From Bank *

Unsecured borrowings
Loan from Holding Company *.

Note 17 : Trade Payables

- Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Sub-note iii below)

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises (Refer Sub-note iii below)

- The Cash Credit facility is primarily secured by corporate guarantee from holding company'Sterling Tools Ltd' , and exclusive charge on entire movable &
current assets of the company. Cash credit facility carries rnterest rate 7.7o/o p.a.linked with repo rate.

**The loan from holding Company is repayableon demand. Loan carries interestrateT.6%p.a.

As At
MAr 31,2022

189.60

2,000.00

,JS9"60

As At
MAr 31,2022

0.96

587.20

588.15

As At
March 31 ,

As At
March 31,

0.01

62.02

62.03

i) Trade Payables ageing schedule as at March 31 ,2022:
Particulars Outstandingfor following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1

vear
1 -2 years 2-3 years More than

3 years
Unbilled

dues
Total

(a)MSME 0.96 0.96

(b) Others 520.1 8 1.06 65.96 587.20

(c) Disputed dues - MSME

d) Disputed dues - Others

ii) Trade Payables ageing schedule as at March 31 ,2021:
Particulars Outstandingfor following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1

vear
1 -2 years 2-3 years More than

3 years
Unbilled

dues
Total

(a)MSME 0.01 0.01

(b) Others 37.82 24.19 162.02

(c) Disputed dues - MSME

d) Disputed dues - Others 1-r: ,
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Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended Mar 31 ,2022
(All amounts ( in lakh, except otherwise specified)

(iii) AsperSchedulelll oftheCompaniesAct,20l3and ascertifiedbythemanagement,theamountduetoMicro,small &mediumenterprises
as defined in Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 is as under:

Principal lnterest
0.96

Total

0.96(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid
to any suppiler at the end of each accounting year;

(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises DevelopmentAct,2006 (27 ot2006), along with the amount of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (whic h has
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose
of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

(iv) The amount does not include any amount due to be transferred to lnvestor Protection and
Education fund.

(v) This information has been compiled in respect of parties to the extent they could be identified
as Micro & Small Enterprises on the basis of information available with the Management as at
March 31 .2022

Note 18 : Other Financial Liabilities

Creditors for Capital Expenditure

Interest Payable

Note 19 : Other Current Liabilities

Advance received from customers

Statutory Dues

As at Mar 31,2022 As at March 31,2021
Non-current Current Non-current Current

1.98

50.05

81.35

52.03 81.35

As At
Mar 31,2022

34.20

12.22

As At
March 31,

............................oL
0.13
oa1

8.4146.42

[This space has been left blank intentionally]



Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended Mar 31 ,2022
(All amounts { in lakh, except otherwise specified}

19.06

3,834.07 19.06

a) Performance Obli gation

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of products to the customers.
There are no long term contracts with customers against which, performance obligation is pending. Accordingly disclsoure of unsatisfied or
remaining performance obligation (which is affected by several factors like changes in scope of contracts, periodic revalidations, adjustment for
revenue that has not been materialized, tax laws etc.) is not applicable to the Company.

b) Disaggregation of Revenue: The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers on the basis of geographical
spread of the operations of the Company. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount of revenues and
cash flows are affected by market and other economic factors:

Note 20 : Revenue from Operations

Sale of Products

- Finished Goods

Sale of Servrces

- Product Support Services

Particu lars

- Domestic

- Export

Note 21 : Other lncome

- lnterest on Fixed Deposits

- Miscellaneous lncome

Note 22 : Gost of Materials Purchased

Raw Materials Purchased
Opening Stock

Add : Purchases

Less: Closing Stock (lncluding goods in transit)

Note 23 : Changes in lnventories of Finished Goods

lnventory at the beginning of year
- Finished Goods

lnventory at the end of year

- Finished Goods (lncluding goods in transit)

(lncrease)/Decrease in lnventory

Note 24 : Employee Benefits Expense

Salary, Wages & Bonus

Contribution to Provident & Other Funds

Compensated leaves

Gratuity

Staff Welfare Expenses

For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
March31,2022 Match31,2021

3,797.07

37,01

For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
March31,2022 March 31,2021

3,755.84

41 .22

18.77

0.29

3,797.07 19.06

For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
Match31,2022 March 31,2021

6.80

0.73

5.52

0.01

7.53 5.53

For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
March31,2022 March31,2021

4.79

4,756.67

645.26

46.03

4.79

4,116.20 41.25

For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
March 31,2022 March 31,202'l

23.38

722.76 23 38

(6ee.37) (23.38)

For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
March 31,2022 March 31, 202'l

/,

!'i'.,

279 06

665
2.77

2.11

5.26

172.59

3.42

3.02

260
120

182.82

".a 
.-:

/r/
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Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended Mar 31 ,2022
(All amounts ( in lakh, except otherwise specified)

Note 25 : Finance Costs

lnterest on

- Borrowings

Other borrowing cost

Note 26 : Depreciation

Depreciation expense on Property Plant and Equipment

Amortization expense on lntangibe Assets

Note 27 : Other Expenses

Stores and Spares Consumed

Packing Material Consumed

Jobwork Charges

Electricity Expenses

Rent

Rates & Taxes

lnsurance

Legal & Professional Charges

Repair & Maintenance

-Piant & Machinery

-Building

-Other

Freight Outward

Payment to Auditors (Refer Sub-note (a) below)

Contract Labour Charges

Travelling & conveyance expenses

Exchange Fluctuation (Net)

Business Promotion

lT Enable Service

Security Charges

Provision for warranty

Loss on sale of fixed asset
Miscellaneous Expenses

a) Details of Payments to Auditors:
As Auditor:
- For Audit

- For Tax Audit
- For other Services

For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
Match31,2022 March31,2021

64.15

15.06

79.21

For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
March31,2022 March 31,2021

30.56

2.22

5.88

017

32.78 6.04

For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
March31,2022 March 31,2021

10.65

4.22

0.50

10.81

33.65

4.43

6.64

78.27

1.91

0.42

3.56

18.23

3.25

64.94

38.43

27.51

0.38

3.01

1.62

112.68

1.92

28.96

0.47

18 16

0.0'1

1.68

35.34

0.14

689
1.75

1 .11

2.28
2 2A

8.56

0.04

300
2.82

0,00

0.00

000
14.10

455.97 103.48

1.65

1.00

0.60

2.28

3.2s

lThis space has been left blank intentionallyl
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Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended Mar 31 ,2022
(All amounts ( in lakh, except otherwise specified)

Note 28 : Gratuity and Other Post-Employment Benefit Plans

l) Defined Contribution Plans

The Company makes contribution towards provident fund/ pension fund. Under the scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of
payroll cost, as specified in the rules of the schemes, to the defined contribution scheme.

For The Year Ended For The Period Ended
March31,2022 March31,2021

Provident Fund

ESI Contribution

Labour Welfare Fund

Total

6.33

0.1 5

0.17

0.34

0.01

0.06

6.65 0.41

ll) Defined benefit plans
In accordance with lnd AS 19 "Employee benefits", an actuarial valuation on the basis of "Projected Unit Credit Method" was carried out, through which the
Company is able to determine the present value of obligations. "Projected Unit Credit Method" recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional
unit of employees benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to built up the final obligation. This method is used in following cases:-

Gratuity Scheme
The Company has defined benefit gratuity plan. Gratuity is calculated as 15 days salary for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of 6
months and is payable on retirement / termination/ resignation, The benefit vests on completing 5 years of service by the employee. The Company makes
provision of such gratuity asseU Liability in the books of accounts on the basis of acturial valuation as per projected unit credit method; net with annual
contribution made by Company to insurer to provide gratuity benefits by taking scheme of insurance.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts
recognised in the balance sheet for the defined benefit plan - gratuity. These have been provided on accrual basis, based on year end actuarial valuation.

For the year ended
March 31,2022

For the year ended
March 31,2021

Particulars
Gratuity (Unfunded) Gratuity

(Unfunded)

i) Change in Benefit Obligation
1 Opening Defined Benefit
2 lnterest cost
3 Current service cost
4 Benefits paid

5 Actuarial (gain) / loss on

Present value of obligation as at the end of the year

ii) Net Benefit Expense Recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss :

Current service cost
Net lnterest cost
Net cost

iii) Expense Recognised in Other Comprehensive lncome :

Remeasurements - Due to Financial Assumptions
Remeasurements - Due to Experience Adjustments
Total Remeasurement

iv) Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date are as follows:
Economic assumptions

1 Discount rate

2 Rate of lncrease in Compensation Levels
3 Expected Rate of Return on Assets

Demographic assumptions
1 Retirement Age (years)
2 Mortality Table

58 58

lndian Assured Lives lndian Assured Lives

Mortality (2012-14) Mortality (2012-14)
(modified)ultimate (modified)ultimate

260
0.18
1.93

(2.23)

2A8

260

2.60

1.93

0.1 8

2.60

2.11 2.60

(0.1e)

(2.03)

--------------e4)-

7.21%
6.00%

6 81%
6 00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and otrylr'ielevant
factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market. f,.t
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v) A Quantitative Sensitivity Analysis for Significant Assumption as is as Shown Below:
For the year ended

March 31,2022
For the year ended

March 31,2021
Gratuity(Unfunded) Gratuity(Unfunded)

Particulars

A. Discount rate
Effect on Defined Benefit Obligation due to 100 basis points increase in Discount Rate
Effect on Defined Benefit Obligation due to '100 basis points decrease in Discount Rate

B. Salary escalation rate
Effect on Defined Benefit Obligation due to 100 basis points increase in Salary Escalation Rate
Effect on Defined Benefit Obligation due to 100 basis points decrease in Salary Escalation Rate

C. Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation is as Follows:
1 year
2 to 5 years
Above 5 years

2.07
3.00

3.01

2.05

000
0.09
2.39

2.18
3.1 0

c. tz
2.16

000
008
2.51

The Sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result
of reasonable changes in key assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting period.
Sensitivities due to morality and withdrawals are insignificant and hence ignored.
Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payments, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy are
not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

Risk
Salary lncreases Actual salary increases will increase the defined benefit liability. lncrease in salary increase

rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability.
Discount Rate Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the liability
Morality and disability Actual details and disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the gratuity

valuation can impact the liabilities.

lll) Other long-term employee benefit plans

The Company operates compensated absences plan, wherein all permanent employees of the Company are entitled to the benefit equivalent
to 15 days leave salary for every completed year of service subject to maximum 30 accumulations of leaves . The salary for calculation of
earned leave is last drawn salary. The same is payable during service, on retirement, withdrawal of scheme, resignation by employee and upon
death / disability of employee.
The scheme is unfunded and liability for the same is recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation. A provision of 1 2.77 lakh (31 March 2021 .

Rs 3.02 lakh) for the vear have been made on the basis of actuarial valuation as at the vear end and debited to the Statement of Profit and

[This space has been left blank intentionally]
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Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended Mar 31 ,2022
(All amounts t in lakh, except otherwise specified)

Note 29 : lncome Tax Expense

i) lncome tax recognised in the statement of profit or loss

Current tax

Deferred tax

Total lncome tax expense/(lncome) reported in the statement of profit or loss

ii) Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Net tax recognised in retained earnings

Accounting profiU (loss) before income tax

At lndia's statutory income tax rate of 17.16 o/o

Tax Effect of Expenses not deductable for tax purposes

Other adlustments including tax rate change

At the income tax rate

lncome tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

Variance

For the year ended
March 31,2022

For The Period Ended
March 31, 2021

(73.84) (56.84)

(73.84) (56.84)

For the year ended
March 31,2022

ForThe Period Ended
March 31, 2021

(0.38)

(0.38)

iii) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by lndia's domestic tax rate

For the year ended For The Period Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31 , 2021

(439.03) (285.62)

(75.34)

0.76

0.74

(49.01)

(7.83)

(73.84)

(73.84)

(56 84)

(56.84)

(0.00)

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

r"
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Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended Mar 31 ,2022
(All amounts in ( in lakh, except otherwise specified)

Note 30: Capital Management

For the purpose of Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital,and all other equrty reserves attributable to
the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholdervalue.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of
the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.

As At
March 31,2022

As At
March 3'1,2021

Borrowings (Refer Note 16)

Trade Payables (Refer Note 17)

Other Financial liabilities (Refer Note 1B)

Other Payables (Refer Note 19 )
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 11)

Net debt (A)

Equity share capital (Refer Note 'l 3)

Other equity (Refer Note 14)

TotalCapital (B)

Capital and net debt (C = A + B)

Gearing ratio (D = A/C)

2,189.6

588. 1 5

52.03

46.42

2.02

62.03

81.35

8.41

316.47

2,874.18 (164.6e)

845.60

(642.18)
845.60

(278 83)

203.42 566.77

3,077.6',1 402.08

93% -41%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31 ,2022 and March

[This space has been left blank intentionally]
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Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended Mar 31,2022
(All amounts { in lakh, except otherwise specified)

Note 31 : Fair value measurements
(a) Financial instruments by category

payables, employee related liabilities and borrowings, are measured at amortised cost except such flnancial assets and liability which are measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

(b) Fair value hierarchy

that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.
Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that has a significant etfect on the fair value measurement are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input whlch has a significant effect on the fair value measurement is not based on observable market data.

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financials ljabilities, including therr levels of in the fair value hierarchy:

As At 31.03.2022

Particulars

Carrying Amount Fair Value
FVOCI Mandatorily

at FVTPL
Other
linancial
assets -
amortised
cost

Other
financial
liabilities -

amortised
cosl

Total
carrying
amount

Quoted
prices in
active
markets
(Level 1)

Significant
observable
inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
unobservable
inputs
(Level 3)

Total

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Trade Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Bank Balances
Security Deposits
Interest Accrued on Fjxed Deposit

Financial Liability measured at fair value

578.12
2.02

200.00
2.94
5.1 5

578.12
2.02

200.00
2.94
5.15

788.23 788.23

2,189.60 2,189.60
1 .98 1.98

50.05 50.05
588.15 588.15

Financial liability not measured at fair value

Borrowings
Creditors for Capital Expenditure
lnterest Payable
Trade payables

2,829.74 2,829.78

As At 31.03.2021

Particulars

Carrying Amount Fair Value
FVOCI Mandatorily

at FVTPL
Other
financial
assets -

amortised
cost

Other
financial
liabilities -

amortised
cost

Total
carrying
amount

Quoted
prices in
active
markets
llevel 1 I

Significant
observable
inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
unobservable
inputs
(Level 3)

Total

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Security Deposits
Trade Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit

2.54
7.50

316.47
0.42

2.54
7.50

316.47
0.42

326.93 326.93

81.35
62.03

Financial Liability measured at fair value

Financial Liability not measured at fair
Creditors for Capital Expenditure

Trade payables
81 35

62.03

Management has assessed that loans, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances,
maturities of these instruments.

143.38 143.38

trade payables,approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short{erm

r
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Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31,2022
(All amounts ( in lakh, except otherwise specified)

Note 32: Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financral liabilities is to finance the
Company's operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations.
The Company's principal financial assets includes security deposits, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, deposits with bank, interest
accrued in deposits, receivables from related and other parties and interest accrued thereon.
The Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company's senior level management of these risks and is supported by
Treasury department that advrses on the appropriate financial risk governance framework.

A. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial
instruments affected by market risk borrowings, short term deposits and derivative financial instruments.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31 ,2022 and March 31 , 2021

i) lnterest rate risk
lnterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

ii) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or
expense is denominated in a foreign currency)

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of foreign currencies against INR at the end of the year, would have affected the measurement
of financial asset and financial liability denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amount shown below. This
analysis assumes that all othervariables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure

31 March 2022
Trade payables and other financial liabilities

Net exposure of recognised financial liabilities

Trade receivables

Net exposure of recognised financial assets

31 March 2021

Trade payables and other financial liabilities

Net exposure of recognised financial liabilities

Trade receivables

Net exposure of recognised financial assets

31 March 2022

USD (5% movement)

31 March 2021

USD (5% movement)

Particulars

Trade Receivables as of March 31 ,2022
Trade Receivables as of March 31 . 2021

Currency in Lakh

USD
5.83

5.83

1.41

1.41

Profit / (Loss) INR in lakh

Strengthening Weakening
(22.12) 22.12

6 months -l 1-2Yrs

(5.16) 5.1 6

B. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk ihat counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing actlvities, including deposits
with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

i) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer
credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive'credit rating. Outstanding customer recervables are
regularly monitored.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables as of the reporting date is as follows:

Less than 6
Months

2-3 Yrs Mole than 3 Total
Yqq"

577.00

7.50

578.11

7.50

1.12

,..-'-' ,/
f ..lj
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Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31,2022
(All amounts t in lakh, except otherwise specified)

ii) Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with the
Company's policy. lnvestments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty.
Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company's Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject
to approval of the Company's finance committee. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss
through counterparty's potential failure to make payments.

C. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring
unacceptable losses.
The Company's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely
monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. lt maintains adequate sources of financing including loans from
banks at an optimised cost.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

As at March 31,2022 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
3 years

TotalUnbilled
dues

Borrowings

Trade payables

Creditors for Capital Expenditure

lnterest Payable
Total

As at March 31,2021

Trade payables

Creditors for Capital Expenditure

Total

[This space has been left blank intentionally]

Less than 1 year 1-2years 2-3 years More than
3 years

2,1 89.60

521 .13

1.98

50.05

1.06 65.96

2,189.60

5BB.'1 5

1.98

50 05

2,762.77 2,829.78

Unbilled
dues

Total

37.84

81.35

24.19 62.03

- 8135

't19.2 24.19 143.38

1.06



Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended Mar 31 ,2022
(All amounts { in lakh, except otherwise specified)

Note 33 : Earning Per Share (EPS)

Basic/ Diluted Earninq Per Share

ProfiU (Loss) attribuiable to Equity Shareholders
Weighted average equity Shares O/S at the end of the year (in Lakh)
Earning per share - Basic/Diluted

Note 34: Leases

Operating lease commitments - Company as lessee

The company has taken factory premises on operating leases, the lease is short{erm of less
Company recognizes lease expense in statement of profit & loss, and rent expense for shortterm
lease liability. Lease rent for current year amounts < 32.70 Lakh ( March 31 , 2021: { 18 Lakh).

Note 35 : Related Party Disclosures

a) Name of the Related Parties and Description of Relationship:

For the year ended For the period ended
March31,2022 March 31 ,2021

(A)
(B)

(A/B)

(365.1 e)

84.56
(4.321

(228 78)
42.51
(s.38)

than twelve months. For shortterm leases,the
leases are not included in the measurement of

Holding Company Sterling Tools Limited

KMP Mr. Atul Aggarwal - Director

Mr. Jaideep Wadhwa- Director

Mlr. Anish Agarwal - Director

[/lr. Anil Aggarual - Managing Director in Holding Company

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by KMP or their relatives Sterling Technologies Private Limited

Sterling Automobiles Private Limited

Relative of KMP Mr Akhill Aggarual

b) Transactions during the year with related party

Name of Related Party Nature of Transaction Realtionship For the Year
ended

For the Year ended
March 31,2021

Sterling Tools Limited Share Capital issued Holding Company 540.60

Unsecured Loan Received 2,000.00

lnterest on Loan 55.62

Mr Jardeep Wadhwa Expenses reimbursed KMP 0.12

Sterling Technologies
Private Limited

Rent paid Enterprises owned or
significantly influenced by

KMP or their relatives

32.70 'l 8.00

Sterling Automobile Private
Limited

Vehicle Repair Enterprises owned or
significantly influenced by

KMP or their relatives

0.02

Expense Reimbursement 0.17 989

c) Corporate Guarantee

The Holding company Sterling Tools Limited has provided corporate guarantee to bank on behalf of the company for Cash Credit limit sanctioned du

Sub Note:

All the transaction with the related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at
the year-end are unsecured. No expenses has been recognized in the current year in respect of bad or doubtful debts/advances and further no
specific provision fordoubtful debts/advances has been made in respect of outstanding balances with related parties.

Note 36 : Segment lnformation
Company is in manufacturing of MCU (Motor Control Unit) and related components used in automobile sector. However, in line with the provision of
lnd AS 108- Operating Segments and on the basis of review of prospective operations to done by the board of directors of the Company (which has
been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) who evaluates the company's performance, allocates resources based on the
analysis of the various performance indicator of the Company as a single unit), the operations of the Company falls under dealing in gelErg_*af MCU
(Motor control Unit), which is considered to be the only reportable segment. 
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ear end balances of related
Name of Related Party Nature of Balance As At

March 31, 2022
As At

March 31,2021
Sterling Tools Limited Loan and lnterest Payable 2,050.1



Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended Mar 31 ,2022
(All amounts t in lakh, except otherwise specified)

Note 37 : Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure

a; Foreign currency exposure not hedged by derivative instruments or otheruise:-

Note 38 : Ratios

Note 39 : CSR Expenditure

As per Section 135 of Companies Act 2013, read with The Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, during current year,
company is not liable to incur CSR expenses.

Note 40 : The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing

regulation under Sections 92-92F of the lncome-tax Act, 1961, Since the law requires exrstence of such information and documentation to be

contemporaneous in nature, the Company continuously updates its documentation for the international transactions entered into with the associated
enterprises during the financial year.

Note 4'1 : ln view of the management, the current assets, loans and advances have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business at
least equal to the amount at which ihey are stated in the balance sheet as at March 31 ,2022.

Note 42 : Figures have been rounded off to the nearest { lakh except otherwise stated.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited

Place of Signature. New Delhi

Dated.
ilj

A.-L '[i],*.-J
(Anish Agarwal)

Director
DIN No 7056465

\I \--\+ ..

(JaideJp Wadhwa)
Director

DIN No 004100'19

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Foreign currency exposure not hedged (Buy) Foreign Currencl
amt in Lakh

I Amount in Lakh Foreign Currency
amt in Lakh

{ Amount in Lakh

USD 5.83 442.30 1.41 103.24

Particulars Base 31st March 2022 31st March 2021 Explanation for change
by more than 25%

(a) Current Ratio Current Assets/Current Liability 0.89 2.77 Due to lncrease in Short
lerm borrowings.

(b) DebtEquity Ratio (Net
Debt/Total Equity)

Net DebU Shareholders' Equity 10.76 NA

(c) Debt Service Coverage
Ratio

Earnings available for debt service /
Debt Service

(5.07) NA

(d) Return on Equity Ratio Net Profit after tax/ Average Net Worth (0.s5) (0.56) Due to loss during
current year

(e) lnventory turnover ratio Sales of Products/ Average lnventory 5,47 1.35

lncrease in business
operations of the
company during the
current year.

(f) Trade Receivables
turnover ratio

Net Credit Sale/ Average Accounts
receivable

13.09 5.08

(g) Trade payables
turnover ratio

Net Credit Purchase / Average Trade
Payables

14.65 1.08

(h) Net capital turnover
ratio

Net Sales/ Working Capital (11.67) 0.07

i) Net profit ratio Profit after tax/Total revenue from
operations

(0.1 0 (12.00)

ij) Return on Capital
:mployed

Earnings before interest & tax/Capital
employed

(1.77) (0.50 Due to loss during
current year

k) Return on investment Return on lnvestmenVCost of
lnvestment

NA NA


